

COMMON COUNCIL



Rouss City Hall
15 North Cameron Street
Winchester, VA 22601
540-667-1815
TDD 540-722-0782
www.ci.winchester.va.us

I, Kari J. Van Diest, Deputy Clerk of the Common Council, hereby certify on this 22nd day of January, 2015, that the following Ordinance is a true and exact copy of one and the same adopted by the Common Council of the City of Winchester, assembled in regular session on the 13th day of January 2015.

**AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT ARTICLES 3, 4, 5, 5.1, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 15, 15.1, 16, 16.1, 18, AND 23 OF THE WINCHESTER ZONING ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES, PERMIT AND REVIEW REQUIREMENTS, AND FEES
TA-14-645**

Ed. Note: The following text represents excerpts of the Zoning Ordinance that are subject to change. Words with strikethrough are proposed for repeal. Words that are boldfaced and underlined are proposed for enactment. Existing ordinance language that is not included here is not implied to be repealed simply due to the fact that it is omitted from this excerpted text.

**ARTICLE 3
LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT - LR**

SECTION 3-2. USES PERMITTED WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

- 3-2-2 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.** (2/13/96, Case TA-95-07, Ord. No. 002-96)

**ARTICLE 4
MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT - MR**

SECTION 4-2. USES PERMITTED WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

- 4-2-5 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.** (2/13/96, Case TA-95-07, Ord. No. 002-96)

**ARTICLE 5
HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT – HR**

SECTION 5-2. USES PERMITTED WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

5-2-14 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.** (2/13/96, Case TA-95-07, Ord. No. 002-96)

**ARTICLE 5.1
LIMITED HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT – HR-1**

SECTION 5.1-2. USES PERMITTED WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

5.1-2-6 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.**

**ARTICLE 6
RESIDENTIAL OFFICE DISTRICT – RO-1**

SECTION 6-2. USES PERMITTED WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

6-2-5 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.** (2/13/96, Case TA-95-07, Ord. No. 002-96)

**ARTICLE 7
RESIDENTIAL BUSINESS DISTRICT – RB-1**

SECTION 7-2. USES REQUIRING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT

7-2-18 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.** (2/13/96, Case TA-95-07, Ord. No. 002-96)

**ARTICLE 8
HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL DISTRICT – B-2**

SECTION 8-2. USES REQUIRING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

8-2-17 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.** (2/13/96, Case TA-95-07, Ord. No. 002-96)

**ARTICLE 9
CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT – B-1**

SECTION 9-2. USES REQUIRING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

9-2-15 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.** (2/13/96, Case TA-95-07, Ord. No. 002-96)

**ARTICLE 10
COMMERCIAL INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT – CM-1**

SECTION 10-2. USES REQUIRING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

10-2-8 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.** (2/13/96, Case TA-95-07, Ord. No. 002-96)

**ARTICLE 11
LIMITED INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT – M-1**

SECTION 11-2. USES PERMITTED WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

11-2-4 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.** (2/13/96, Case TA-95-07, Ord. No. 002-96)

**ARTICLE 12
INTENSIVE INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT – M-2**

SECTION 12-2. USES PERMITTED WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT

12-2-1 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.** (2/13/96, Case TA-95-07, Ord. No. 002-96)

**ARTICLE 13
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT**

SECTION 13-2. PLANNED COMMERCIAL DISTRICT – PC

13-2-4 USES PERMITTED WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

13-2-4.3 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.**

**ARTICLE 15
HEALTH SERVICES DISTRICT – HS**

SECTION 15-2. USES PERMITTED WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

15-2-3 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.** (2/13/96, Case TA-95-07, Ord. No. 002-96)

**ARTICLE 15.1
MEDICAL CENTER DISTRICT – MC**

SECTION 15.1-2. USES PERMITTED BY CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

15.1-2-3 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.** (2/13/96, Case TA-95-07, Ord. No. 002-96)

**ARTICLE 16
HIGHER EDUCATION DISTRICT – HE-1**

SECTION 16-2. USES PERMITTED WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

16-2-1 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.** (2/13/96, Case TA-95-07, Ord. No. 002-96)

**ARTICLE 16.1
EDUCATION, INSTITUTION AND PUBLIC USE DISTRICT – EIP**

SECTION 16.1-2. USES PERMITTED WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.

16.1-2-1 ~~Transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems~~ **Telecommunications facilities** in accordance with Section 18-2-1.2 of this Ordinance **with the exception of minor modifications of existing facilities as provided in Section 18-2-1.2C.**

18-2-1.2 Telecommunications Facilities

A. For the purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply:

- 1) Telecommunications Facility: Any antenna, antenna array or other communications equipment consisting of personal wireless services, as defined in the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996, which includes FCC licensed commercial wireless telecommunications services, including cellular, personal communications services (PCS), specialized mobile radio (SMR), enhanced specialized mobile radio (ESMR), and paging, as well as unlicensed wireless services and common carrier wireless exchange access services, and similar services that currently exist or that may in the future be developed. Where reference is made to a telecommunications facility, unless otherwise specified or indicated by context, such reference will be deemed to include the support structure on which the antenna or other communications equipment is mounted, transmission cables, and any associated equipment shelter.**
- 2) New Telecommunications Facility: The establishment of a telecommunications facility, on a tower, building, or other support structure, where such facility does not presently exist.**
- 3) Major Modification: An alteration of a telecommunications facility wherein:**
 - i. The height of the existing facility is increased by more than ten percent (10%) from the current height or twenty (20) feet, whichever is greater;**
 - ii. More than 4 new equipment cabinets or 1 new shelter;**
 - iii. Protrusion of more than twenty (20) feet or width of the tower whichever is greater; or,**
 - iv. Excavation outside existing leased or owned property and current easements.**
 - v. The calculation for such modifications shall be cumulative over time following the initial approval of the telecommunications facility. No such modification shall be permitted if the structure will exceed the height for the zoning district as provided in 18-2-1.2B.**
- 4) Minor Modification: An alteration of an existing telecommunications facility that does not meet or exceed the thresholds for a major modification outlined in Section 18-2-1A(2). The calculation for such modifications shall be cumulative over time following the initial approval of the telecommunications facility. No such modification shall be permitted if the structure will exceed the height for the zoning district as provided in 18-2-1.2B. Any modification,**

replacement or collocation of antennas on a building containing an existing telecommunications facility shall be classified as a minor modification.

~~18-2-1.2B.~~ Proposals for **new transmitting and receiving facilities and towers for cellular communications systems and similar communications systems telecommunications facilities or major modifications of such facilities** shall demonstrate the following: (2/14/96, Case TA-95-07, Ord. No. 002-96; 8/13/13, Case TA-13-198, Ord. No. 2013-21)

- 1) All possible means for sharing space on existing towers or on existing buildings or other structures have been exhausted and no alternative other than constructing a new tower exists, and if a new tower is proposed, the applicant has executed a Letter of Intent to share space on their tower and negotiate in good faith with other interested parties.;
- 2) The height of any tower is no more than the minimum to accomplish required coverage and any new tower is separated from property lines in a residential district by not less than the height of the tower. In no case shall any tower exceed 75 feet in height in a LR, MR, HR, HR-1, RO-1, RB-1, or HS Districts, nor 100 feet in the B-1, B-2, CM-1, PC, MC, **EIP** or HE-1 Districts, nor 200 feet in the M-1 or M-2 Districts;
- 3) The tower construction is of a design which minimizes the visual impact and the tower and other facilities have been camouflaged and/or screened from adjacent properties and rights of way to the maximum extent practicable. To this end, the proposal must provide for retention of existing stands of trees and the installation of screening where existing trees do not mitigate the visual impact of the facility. Such screening must, as a minimum, meet the requirements of Section 19-5-6.4d of this Ordinance. The Planning Commission may recommend and the City Council may require additional trees and screening when the minimum provisions do not mitigate adverse visual impacts of the facility;
- 4) The electromagnetic fields do not exceed the radio frequency emission standards established by the American National Standards Institute or standard issued by the Federal Government subsequent to the adoption of this Ordinance.

C. Minor modifications of existing telecommunications facilities shall require approval of an administrative zoning permit in place of a conditional use permit and fee as provided in Section 23-8-1:

- 1) **Such modifications shall be submitted for approval on a form designated by the Administrator.**
- 2) **Prior to approval of the zoning permit, the applicant shall demonstrate that required approval has been secured for any additional ordinance requirements as provided in this ordinance, including but not limited to site plan approval and certificates of appropriateness for facilities in the Historic Winchester (HW) and Corridor Enhancement (CE) district, as needed.**

- 3) **Approval of an administrative telecommunications permit shall include the following conditions:**
- i. **Submission of an as-built emissions certification after the facility is in operation, demonstrating compliance with radio frequency emission standards established by the Federal Government.**
 - ii. **Submittal of a bond at one hundred and fifty percent (150%) to guarantee removal of the approved facilities should the use cease.**
 - iii. **The applicant, tower owner, or property owner shall remove equipment within ninety (90) days once the equipment is no longer in active use.**

ARTICLE 23

ADMINISTRATION AND INTERPRETATION

SECTION 23-8 FEES. (10/13/99, Case TA-99-04, Ord. No. 029-99; 10/9/02, Case TA-02-07, Ord. No. 024-2002; 8/13/13, Case TA-13-198, Ord. No. 2013-21)

23-8-1	Conditional Use (when applied for the same time as site plan) (10/8/02, Case TA-02-07, Ord. No. 024-2002)	\$200
	Conditional Use (when applied for separate from site plan) (10/8/02, Case TA-02-07, Ord. No. 024-2002)	\$500
	Conditional Use – Telecommunications Facility/Tower (New, Major Modification, or Collocation)	\$1500
	<u>Administrative Telecommunications Permit (Minor Modifications)</u>	<u>\$500</u>

Ordinance No. 2014-48

ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Winchester on the 13th of January 2015.

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Winchester, Virginia.




 Kari J. Van Diest, CMC
 Deputy Clerk of the Common Council